
INCORPORATED COUNTY OF 
LOS ALAMOS 
101 Camino Entrada, Building 3 

Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544 (505) 663-3507 
Procurement Division 

 

November 22, 2023 
 
 

TO ALL HOLDERS OF SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS FOR: 
 

Invitation for Bids No. IFB24-16 
IFB Name: White Rock Visitor Center Restrooms and Pavilion 

 
Addendum No. 1 

This Addendum No. 1 forms a part of the Solicitation Documents and modifies, as noted below, 
the original Solicitation Documents identified above. 

 
This Addendum provides an updated submission deadline and updated Project Dates and 
Milestones, as well as revised date for Site Visits to all potential Bidders: 

 
1. See below the Attendance Sheet from the Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference held on 

November 13, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. 

 

2. Delete Section 1.5.5 Campaign Contribution Form in its entirety and replace with the attached 
updated Section 1.5.5. 
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3. Los Alamos County has not submitted request to Construction Industries for permit? 
Answer:  Contractor is responsible for permits. 

 
4. Please provide specifications for the privacy screen and the ad alternate metal screen. 

Answer:  Specifications regarding privacy screen in front of bathroom doors can be found 
on sheet C-111. The color for the pressure treated plywood shall be White. The bid 
alternate 2 should be a 1/16” thick plate. 

 
5. Who is responsible for loading disassembled structure and removing it from site? 

Answer: The contractor is responsible for removal of the existing sitting cover structure, see 
keyed note 4 on sheet C-007. 

 
6. Does the Staging Area need to be fenced? When will dumpster be set-up? 

Answer: Yes, Staging Area must be fenced. Dumpsters will be set-up once construction 
begins 

 
7. Will the RV Park remain open during construction? 

Answer: Yes. 
 

8. Reinforcement on the Slab? 
Answer:  See sheet KLY-674 provided by Cedar Forrest Products that has a 4” concrete slab 

with 6 x 6 W 4.5 x W 4.5 reinforcement. 
 

9. Flowable Fill? 
Answer:  Flowable fill is to be used in locations where the new utilities do not maintain a 12- 

inch minimum separation from the existing utilities see keyed note 3 on sheet C- 
104 and C-105. Flowable fill will also be used to protect the installation of the new 
electrical and communication conduit at the shallow depth of 18-inches. 

 
10. Utilities? 

Answer:  Exiting utility data shown in plans is based on County data and needs to be verified 
by the contractor. Pot holes were not performed to located vertical position of 
utilities. 

 
11. IRR SYS – who is responsible to replace? 

Answer: Contractor will be responsible to replace 
 

12. Is there flexibility in County’s Noise Ordinance? 
Answer: Noise Ordinance waivers are required for work occurring between the hours of 

9:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., see Section 1.3.5 Conditions of Work. 
13. Please provide contact information for Cedar Forest Products. 

Answer: Contact that assisted in the design as shown is plans is Duke DeFillippo, 
duke@creativerecdesigns.com, 505-414-9866. 

 
14. Does the job site have security cameras or fire alarm system? 

Answer: There are no security cameras or a fire alarm system on Premises. Fire 
suppression is not a part of the Scope of Work. 

 
15. Where is the location of FH for water? 

Answer: South end of RV park. 

mailto:duke@creativerecdesigns.com
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16. Rip Rap??? – any particular species of rock? 
Answer: Sheet C-101 calls out Class C rip rap. Section 602: Slope and Erosion Protection 

Structures of the NMDOT 2019 specifications provides additional info. / guidance. 
This specification section has been attached for reference. 

 
17. Removal of some concrete railing and sidewalk? 

Answer: Sheet C-007 shows removal of some existing railing and sidewalk for the installation 
of the new concrete pad and restroom facilities. 

 
18. Who is responsible for removal of trees? 

Answer: Contractor is responsible to remove and deliver to a planting location within 
Los Alamos County. Planting location will be provided during Pre-Construction Conference. 

 
All other provisions of the Solicitation Documents shall remain unchanged. This Addendum No. 
1 is hereby made a part of the Solicitation Documents to the same extent as those provisions 
contained in the original documents and all itemized listings thereof. 
Each Respondent is requested to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1 with the Bid 
Forms. 
I hereby acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No.1. 

 
 
 

Signed Print Name Date 
 
 

Title Company 
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1.5.5 Campaign Contribution Form 
 

Incorporated County of Los Alamos 
Bid Number: IFB24-16 

White Rock Visitor Center Outdoor Restrooms and Pavilion 
*This document must be returned with IFB submittal.* 

 
Any prospective contractor seeking to enter into a contract with the Incorporated County of Los 
Alamos must file this form disclosing whether they, a family member or a representative of the 
prospective contractor has made a campaign contribution to an applicable public official during 
the two (2) years prior to the date on which prospective contractor submits a proposal or, in the 
case of a sole source or small purchase contract, the two (2) years prior to the date prospective 
contractor signs the contract, if the aggregate total of contributions given by the prospective 
contractor, a family member or a representative of the prospective contractor to the public official 
exceeds TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00) over the two (2) year period. 

 
THIS FORM MUST BE FILED BY ANY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR WHETHER OR NOT 
THEY, THEIR FAMILY MEMBER, OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE HAS MADE ANY 
CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE. 

 
The following definitions apply: 

 
“Applicable public official” means a person elected to an office or a person appointed to 

complete a term of an elected office, who has the authority to award or influence the award 
of the contract for which the prospective contractor is submitting a competitive sealed 
proposal or who has the authority to negotiate a sole source or small purchase contract 
that may be awarded without submission of a sealed competitive proposal. 

 
“Campaign Contribution” means a gift, subscription, loan, advance or deposit of money or other 

things of value, including the estimated value of an in-kind contribution, that is made to or 
received by an applicable public official or any person authorized to raise, collect or expend 
contributions on that official’s behalf for the purpose of electing the official to either statewide 
or local office. “Campaign Contribution” includes the payment of a debt incurred in an 
election campaign, but does not include the value of services provided without 
compensation or unreimbursed travel or other personal expenses of individuals who 
volunteer a portion or all of their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee, nor 
does it include the administrative or solicitation expenses of a political committee that are 
paid by an organization that sponsors the committee. 

 
“Contract” means any agreement for the procurement of items of tangible personal property, 

services, professional services, or construction. 
 

“Family member” means a spouse, father, mother, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter- 
in-law or son-in-law of: 

(a) a prospective contractor, if the prospective contractor is a natural person; or 
(b) an owner of a prospective contractor. 

 
“Pendency of the procurement process” means the time period commencing with the public 

notice of the request for proposals and ending with the award of the contract or the 
cancellation of the request for proposals. 
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“Person” means any corporation, partnership, individual, joint venture, association or any other 
private legal entity. 

 
“Prospective contractor” means a person who is subject to the competitive sealed proposal 

process set forth in the Procurement Code or is not required to submit a competitive sealed 
proposal because that person qualifies for a sole source or a small purchase contract. 

 
“Representative of a prospective contractor” means an officer or director of a corporation, a 

□member or manager of a limited liability corporation, a partner of a partnership or a trustee 
of a trust of the prospective contractor. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS: (Report any applicable contributions made to the following 
- COUNTY COUNCILORS: Theresa Cull; Denise Derkacs; Melanee Hand; Susie Havemann; 
Keith Lepsch; David Reagor; and Randal Ryti.) 

 
Contribution Made By:  
Relation to Prospective Contractor:  
Name of Applicable Public Official:  

Contribution(s) 
Date(s) 

Contribution 
Amount(s): 

Nature of Contribution(s): Purpose of Contribution(s): 

 $   

 $   

 $   

 $   

 $   

 
(Attach extra pages if necessary) 

 
Please check the box next to the applicable statement. 

 

 CONTRIBUTIONS IN THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OVER TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS 
($250.00) WERE MADE to an applicable public official by me, a family member or representative, 
and I have disclosed those contributions. 

 NO CONTRIBUTIONS IN THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OVER TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS 
($250.00) WERE MADE to an applicable public official by me, a family member or representative. 

 
 
 

Signature Date 
 
 

Title (position) 
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GENERAL NOTES:

1. CIRCUIT NUMBERS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. FEED LIGHTING FIXTURES FROM 20A, 120V,
CIRCUIT BREAKER IN SERVICE PANEL. FEED RECEPTACLES FROM 20A, 120V, CIRCUIT BREAKERS
IN SERVICE PANEL.

2. FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
3. IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 22"x34", THEN IT IS REDUCED SIZE PLOT. USE GRAPHIC SCALE

ACCORDINGLY.
4. COORDINATE WITH MANUFACTURER DRAWINGS AND ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON BUILDING AND CANOPY AREA.
5. COORDINATE WITH MANUFACTURER DRAWINGS FOR LOCATIONS OF ALL ELECTRICAL

EQUIPMENT.
6. OBTAIN THE SERVICES OF THE CONTROL MANUFACTURER FIELD REPRESENTATIVE TO

CALIBRATE AND COMMISSION THE LIGHTING CONTROL SYSTEM AND DEVICES AND TO PROGRAM
SETTINGS AND TIMECLOCK.

7. INSTALL LIGHTING SYSTEM CONTROLLER IN PLUMBING CHASE INCLUDING WIRELESS SWITCH
AND ANTENNA. IF SIGNAL STRENGTH TO THE LIGHTING FIXTURES IS TOO LOW, ANTENNA SHALL
BE MOVED OUTDOORS AND MOUNTED TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF BUILDING.

8. MOUNT RECEPTACLES AT 18" TO CANOPY SUPPORTS.
9. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL

CODE (NEC), NATIONAL ELECTRICAL SAFETY CODE (NESC), STATE AND LOCAL CODES,
REGULATIONS AND GENERAL ORDINANCES.

10. ALL NEW WIRING AND CABLING SHALL BE PROPERLY IDENTIFIED AND TAGGED AT ALL PULL
BOXES, JUNCTION BOXES, EQUIPMENT BOXES AND CABINETS.

11. ALL PULL BOXES SHALL BE UNDERGROUND, RATED FOR THE LOCATION AND PROPERLY MARKED
TO INDICATE THE SERVICE THAT IS UTILIZING THE PULL BOX (“ELECTRICAL”, ETC).  CONTRACTOR
SHALL INSTALL ADDITIONAL PULL BOXES AND JUNCTION BOXES AS NEEDED OR WHEREVER IT IS
REQUIRED BY N.E.C. AND/OR REQUIRED BY THE LOCAL UTILITY PROVIDERS.

12. SHOULD CONTRACTOR AT ANY TIME NOTICE THAT THE ACTUAL FIELD CONDITIONS DO NOT
CORRESPOND TO THE INFORMATION INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY
OF THE CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY THE OWNER, LOCAL UTILITIES AND ENGINEERING FIRM FOR
CLARIFICATION AND DIRECTION PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

13. WHEREVER REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND INSTALL UNISTRUT CHANNELS,
ANGLE IRON OR ANY ADDITIONAL SUPPORTS REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE THE INSTALLATION
OF ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS.

14. ALL CONDUIT ROUTINGS SHOWN ON THE PLAN DRAWINGS ARE APPROXIMATE.  EXACT
ROUTINGS AND LOCATION OF CONDUITS SHALL BE COORDINATED IN THE FIELD AND INSTALLED
AS FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW.

15. LOCATIONS OF THE ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, PULL BOXES AND ALL OTHER DEVICES SHOWN ON
THE PLAN DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHALL BE FIELD COORDINATED.  ALL ELECTRICAL
EQUIPMENT AND DEVICES SHALL BE U.L. LISTED.  SEE ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS SHEET FOR
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

16. MAXIMUM VOLTAGE DROP SHALL NOT EXCEED THE FOLLOWING:

a. FROM SERVICE TO END LOAD - 5%
b. FOR FEEDER OR BRANCH CIRDUITS - 3%.

(IF FINAL INSTALLATION OF WIRING EXCEEDS ALLOWABLE VOLTAGE DROP REQUIREMENTS, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL INCREASE THE CONDUCTOR SIZE  AND CONDUIT, AS NEEDED, TO MEET
NEC REQUIREMENTS.)
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ELECTRICAL - POWER AND LIGHTING PLAN1 1" = 5'

KEYED NOTES
NEW METER SHALL BE INSTALLED IN APPROXIMATE LOCATION SHOWN.  FINAL LOCATION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY
LOCATION OF INCOMING SERVICE FROM UTILITY TRANSFORMER:

A. METERING: 100 AMPERE, 120/240V, SINGLE PHASE, 3 WIRE SERVICE AS PER LOCAL ELECTRIC COMPANY
REQUIREMENTS.

SERVICE PANEL COORDINATE WITH MANUFACTURER FOR LOCATION OF ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.

NEW UNDERGROUND SERVICE TO NEW BUILDING:  3-#2/0 THWN CU. IN 2" SCHD 40 CONDUIT FROM METER TO EXISTING
UTILITY TRANSFORMER.  COORDINATE WITH LOCAL ELECTRIC COMPANY FOR REQUIREMENTS, FINAL CONNECTIONS
AND EXACT LOCATION OF UTILITY TRNSFORMER.

INSTALL A 20A GFCI DUPLEX RECEPTACLE ALONG THE FRAME OF THE NEW  TV SCREEN ENCLOSURE.  RECEPTACLE
WILL BE LOCATED INSIDE THE ENCLOSURE AND UTILIZED FOR A FLAT SCREEN TV TO BE INSTALLED.  COORDINATE
WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF THE TV PRIOR TO ANY INSTALLATION. POWER TO NEW
RECEPTACLE WILL BE FED FROM NEW PANEL INSTALLED WITH BUILDING.

A NEW DATA RECEPTACLE WILL BE INSTALLED ALONG THE FRAME OF THE NEW TV SCREEN ENCLOSURE, NEXT TO THE
RECEPTACLE.  DATA RECEPTACLE WILL BE LOCATED INSIDE THE ENCLOSURE AND UTILIZED FOR A FLAT SCREEN TV
TO BE INSTALLED.  FINAL INSTALLATION OF DATA CABLE TO BE COMPLETED BY OTHERS.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL
CONDUIT WITH PULLSTRING FROM RECEPTACLE TO CHASE.

PENDANT MOUNT LIGHT FIXTURE 8'-4" ABOVE FLOOR. PROVIDE PENDANT AND SWIVEL MOUNTING KIT TO INSTALL
FIXTURE PARALLEL TO FLOOR.

1

2

3

DESCRIPTION

HOLOPHANE PARKPAK SQUARE LED, LED PERFORMANCE
PACKAGE, CCT, ZERO UPLIGHT, TYPE V, PENDANT MOUNT
WITH SWIVEL KIT. PROVIDE 120V CIRCUIT.

WIRELESS, BATTERY-POWERED, DIMMER SWITCH. 3 -
BUTTON - ON/OFF, DIM UP, DIM DOWN.

WIRELESS LIGHT SYSTEM CONTROLLER, WITH ANTENNA.
PROVIDE 120V CIRCUIT

GFI TYPE QUAD RECEPTACLE IN WEATHERPROOF
ENCLOSURE. PROVIDE 120V CIRCUIT.

COMBINATION DAYLIGHT/MOTION SENSOR. MOUNT
OUTDOOR, LARGE MOTION/EXTENDED RANGE 360 DEGREE
LENS, CURRENT MONITORING, GENERATION TWO. PROVIDE
120V CIRCUIT.

DASH LINE INDICATES 0-10V CONTROL WIRE IN 3 4" RMC.
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CATALOG NO.

PPSQL2 P10 30K XX FC T5W PSM

NLIGHT AIR RPOD
MICRO RPODU
DX WH G2. NGRAVE FA3

NLIGHT ECLYPSE NEC MVOLT REMR ENC AIR
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